FENIS CASTLE

HISTORY

Fénis castle dominates a
portion of territory which,
since the 12 century, had been
under the jurisdiction of the
lords of Challant, viscounts of
Aosta.

The choice of a site lacking in
natural defence prerogatives,
contrary to the strategic criteria
which determined how the
older castle of the Aosta Valley
were situated, was perhaps
justified by the pre-existence

of settlements in this area since Roman times.
The castle is the synthesis of various successiildibg campaigns, from the late12entury up to the 15
century. The first explicit mention of the castlgtes back to 1242, when it was enfeoffed to Gettufrof
Challant and its brothers.

The most important structural works of transformattook place in the T4century, under the lordship of
Aimone of Challant, the result of which gave thestlmits present appearance. The period of greatest
splendour at the castle coincided with that of@h@llants’ maximum financial and political success.
Aimone’s son Bonifacio I, who held high-ranking i@ty and diplomatic positions at the court of Savo
promoted a new building campaign to adapt the eaistigonghold to the requirements of courtly Iijéest
During this campaign the courtyard and the chamebvadorned with superb frescoed decorations.

During the second quarter of the century, the sonifBcio [| commissioned to Giacomino of Ivreado

the pictorial decoration on the east wall of thartgard.

Since then, the castle did not undergo any furdignificant alterations, save for those caused Hay t
progressive decline of the Challant family from #fseond half of the fentury.

At the beginning of the #8century the castle was in a state of abandon716 LCount Georges-Francois,
the last heir to Fénis, was obliged to sell thetleasvhich passed then through the hands of various
proprietors and was turned into a farmhouse.

In the second half of the $@entury the architect Alfredo d’Andrade, a leadingonent of the Piedmontese
cultural movement of neo-Gothic tendency, becanterésted in this monument and made a survey of its
architectural and decorative details. In 1895 beght the castle and, having restored its moreridedted
parts, in 1906 he donated it to the State.

The neo-Gothic revival, promoted in the thirties ttne Minister De
Vecchi, also affected Fénis castle which becameottject of rather
heavy-handed restoration work between 1936 and Ifidfed at
accentuating its medieval appearance. These walikscted by the
architect Mesturino, included the arbitrary integma of the double line

of curtain walls making it almost impossible to agnize the original
structures.

The pieces of furniture in the castle are not aagbut purchased during
the 20" century from antiquarians. Of all the furnituregaited, only a
small part is actually from the Aosta Valley. In020the furniture was
collocated in different rooms by following signiiot grouping criteria like the typology, the periand the
origin of each piece.

THE DEFENSIVE APPARATUS
The castle appears as a stronghold, so designedderline its defensive aptitude and the prestigthe®
Challant family.



It is surrounded by a double concentric line otaiarwalls with watchtowers which are inter-conregcby a
battlemented parapet for the garrison rounds.

The present entrance and the external walls date fine 1930s; the original entrance, probably enwtlst
side and protected by the keep, led into the destd.

The approach to the residential block of the casttberefore rather like a labyrinth, organisedtstically,
compartment by compartment, under the constantaarftthe towers.

THE RESIDENTIAL EDIFICE

The central residential block of the castle ishie shape of an irregular pentagon, with round tevearthe
corners and square towers at the centre of thesfosiges; the tower on the east side is equippéd avi
portcullis to defend the passage into the innertgatd.

The basement contained the cellars; the ground fles assigned to the various services of theecasi

large entrance hallgande salle basgevas occupied by the guard; other rooms were asestockroom,
whereas the kitchen is identifiable by the colofiseplace.

The lord of the manor’s residence was on the fiiogtr together with the main rooms of state, theaghall

containing the frescoed chapel.

The servant’s quarters, the guest-rooms and threagravere on the second floor.

THE FRESCOES
There is a representation 8f. George freeing therincesson the wall |
of the stairway in the courtyard; along the walishe “loggiato” there’s
a series oBaggi(wise men) bearing a scroll withnaottoin old French.
The cycle continues in the chapel with teucifixion which formed the
background of the altar an@®ur Lady of Mercysheltering somef
members of the Challant family under the mantl@valthese and along
the side walls there are full-lenght figures of tq@ostlesand various
saints
The achievements of such an imposing cycle muset havolved a
number of artists; Bonifacio of Challant chose arksbhop which
adhered to the international Gothic style. The rhadenspiration was
that of Giacomo Jaquerio the principal artist & ¢burt of Savoy during
the reign of Amedeo VIIl.

1 - Original entrance
2 - keep

14 3 - Inner walls
13 4 - Inner ward
) 5 - stables
6 - entrance to the residential
block
11} | 7 - entrance hall
T’? 8 - inner courtyard
s 9 - dovecote tower
10 -barbican at the entrance
11 - present entrance

12 - archaic tower
13 - outer ward
NB- . 14 - outer walls




CASTLE OF ISSOGNE

Formerly owned by the bishops of Aosta before
restoration work was commissioned by Ibleto of
Challant around 1400, the castle of Issogne took on
its definitive appearance between the years 14€0 an
1510 when George of Challant, Protonotary
Apostolic and Prior of St Orso, restored it and
converted it into a sumptuous residence for his
cousin Marguerite de la Chambre and her son
Philibert. Issogne is no longer a medieval cagile b
rather a Renaissance residence without any external
signs of ostentation, its corner towers being only

slightly higher than the roof of the building.

Inside, the entrance and portico are adorned wetbcbs in the lunettes of the arches, representing
scenes of everyday life - the tailor’s shop, thethecary’s shop, the baker and butcher’s shop, the
guardroom, the fruit and vegetable market, the sf@enger and pork-butcher can all be
distinguished.

In the centre of the courtyard, the facades of wiie entirely
decorated with the nuptial coats of arms of thell@htafamily,
is the famous wrought-iron pomegranate fountain.

The castle has about 50 rooms. Open to visitoth@ground
floor is the dining-room, where the only means of
communication with the kitchen is an opening mawepfates
under the hood. The kitchen comprises three largpléces and
is divided in two by a double vault, one part rgsdrfor the
nobility and the other for the servants. In theolpés hall, apart
from its beautiful stone fireplace with hood begrthe Challant
coat of arms between a lion and a griffin, alsbeéadmired are
the paintings on the wooden ceiling beams andrésebs on
the walls depicting landscapes, hunting scene$anid’
decision.

: On the first floor is the chapel with its finelya#ated pointed
vaults, frescoed waIIs and Gothic style altar ajraned, gilded wood adorned with a Flemish
school triptych. Wooden railings separate the egesarved for the nobility from that of the
servants. The Countess’s bedroom with adjoiningpoyaadorned with paintings and Count René’s
bedroom are also on this floor.

On the second floor is the room of the King of Eawith coffered ceiling and fireplace bearing
the royal coat of arms with background of gilde@$ and the motto “Vive le Roi”. Also on this
floor is a room known as the room of the KnightsStMaurice, with its beautiful coffered ceiling
on which the cross of this order has been painted.

The castle passed from the hands of the Challamtyfao the Madruzzo family and back again to
the Challant family after a legal battle for susies which lasted more than a century. Various
other changes of ownership then followed beforectigtle was bought in 1872 by the painter
Vittorio Avondo, who restored it and donated ithe State in 1907. Today the castle belongs to the
Regional Authorities.



THE GROUND FLOOR

The courtyard. The Pomegranate fountain standseiceéntre. The walls feature a
monumental composition of the House of Challantisgipal coats-of-arms
(Miroir). The frescoed lunettes in the arcade are a rexbbrkealistic
representation of daily life in the village. Numasograffiti can be detected on the
frescoes; these date from thé"16 the 18-century. The benches belong to the
original furniture of the castle.

THE DINING HALL. Vittorio Avondo dedicated partical attention to the
furnishing of this large hall with magnificient fakvare, cutlery and glassware,
which he ordered to be copied from late-Gothicioats.

3- THE KITCHEN. The kithcen is divided into two disct areas by a wooden
railing and the cooking procedures are similah®sNiddle-age one

4- THE HALL OF JUSTICE. This is the main receptanea of the castle. The
splendid pictorial decoration simulates a continopen gallery supported on
crystal, alabaster and marble pillars, alternatedumptuous leather wall-hangings. A variety ofllerapes,
animated by hunting figures and scenes of coypeasant life, forms the bakground. On one wallgliea
representation of théudgment of ParidGiorgio of Challant’s coat-of-arms is depictedtba chimney-
breast. The stalls are in “flamboyant” Gothic-style

THE FIRST FLOOR

5- THE CHAPEL. It has five arched-spans and thalpytery is delimited
by a wooden railing. The frescoes and the dooteepolyptych are
attribued to the same “maestro” who worked on timettes in the arcade
(identified as “maitre Colin”). The altar with deoiis the original 1%
century one that Vittorio Avondo recuperated in iésr

6- THE ARMOURY. This was called the “salle de Sa’/an the 1565
inventory. Shown here is what remains of VittorieoAdo’s collection of
antique weapons.

7- MARGHERITA DE LA CHAMBRE'S ROOM. The name allugé¢o

the recurring coat-of-arms (now partly erasedhimupper frieze along the
walls. The Bed is a copy of the one in the “Kingoénce” Salon.

8- MARGHERITA DE LA CHAMBRE'S ORATORY. This littleloom

has frescoes of thessumption of the Virgiand theMartyrdom of the
Saints Catherine and Margherite.

SECOND FLOOR

9- GIORGIO OF CHALLANT’S ROOM. The crosses of Staltice decorate
the coffered-ceilings. The Giorgio of Challant co&dirms, supported on
each side by the heraldic lion and the gryphonoidges the chimney-breast.

10- GIORGIO OF CHALLANT’'S ORATORY. The frescoes repent scenes
of theCrucifixion and theDeposition in the Holy Sepulcheand thePieta

11- GIORGIO OF CHALLANT’S STUDY. This is a small gsage-room
with a coffered-ceiling

12- THE TOWER ROOM. This room has an exceptionalwon the valley ,
which lends to the tradition that it was used fgnal-making.

13- THE YOUNG COUNTESS’ ROOM.

14- THE “KING OF FRANCE” SALON. Remarkable for itecoration and

furnishings, this hall takes its name from the eufadrms with the three
carved lilies of the French crown that decoratesréitesses of the coffered-ceiling and the chinfomegst.

On the way out, a beautiful stone spiral-stair¢asef) connects the central structure to the east wirigeo
castle. This is an architectural masterpiece.




VERRES CASTLE

HISTORY

Ibleto of Challant’s castle

The military and strategic prerogatives of the siv@sen for
this stronghold were ideal; built on the top of r@gpitous
crag overlooking the mountain torrent Evangon,ainthates
the village of Verrés and controls both the enteatw the
Challant-Ayas valley and the main regional road.

The feudal jurisdiction of the territory was greditin 1372 to
Ibleto di Challant, Governor and Capt. General iefdfhont,
in the service of the dukes of Savoy for over 4@rgeThe
castle was entirely rebuilt thanks to this gre
military leader. He wanted to achieve a cas £®
of totally innovative conception — one th:
would reflect his power and prestige — and
the Verres stronghold became the first exam
of a castle to be built in one compact block,

thus anticipating the Renaissance model.

“Vive Introd et Madame de Challant!”

This massive mono-block structure, each wall ofchineasures around 30 meters in lenght, is
crowned by a rather compact line of corbels whig$tans the battlement (now roofed).

Above a door which leads from the great staircaghe first floor, an inscription in Gothic black-
letter, dated 1390, bears witness to the buildargmaign ordered by Ibleto of Challant.

Ibleto died in 1409 and was succeeded by his sandéssco, who died in 1442 without a male heir.
In vain, his daughters Caterina and Margheritavstto maintain the noble title which, following to
a lawsuit, was granted to Giacomo of Challant-Ayithes/in 1456.

Tradition holds that on the feast of the Holy Tiynin the year 1449, in order to gain the favour of
the local population, Caterina, together with hestiand Pierre d’Introd, descended from the castle
to the public square in Verres, where she joinethendancing with the young villagers, amidst a
rejoicing crowd; this episode is re-enacted inlhgeantry of the historical carnival held annually
in Verres.

Renato of Challant s fortress

In 1536 Renato of Challant had the military appssaenewed, thus adapting
the manor to the use of the latest firearms. Tloeiate was built at this time
and fortified with battlements, spurred buttresssesd with militarized
polygonal turrets suitable for the use of cannansrauskets: a gatehouse and
a drawbridge were built to fortify the entrance anolpholes were opened in
the external walls.

New cross windows, in addition to the existing Go#tyle stone mullions
with one or two lights, and new Moresque-style attldoors ( of evident
Spanish influence) were put in and the interiortted castle was enhanced
with new furniture. When Renato of Challant died1565 without a mail
he|r the castle was incorporated into the Savtgtes




In 1661, Duke Carlo Emanuele Il ordered the weapaifr the castle to be dismantled and
transferred to the fortress of Bard — situated iteatral, strategic position for the defence of the
Aosta Valley.

The 19"-CENTURY RESTORATION

The Challant regained the possession of the stmldgim 1696 and maintained it up to the
extinction of their lineage at the 18entury.

At that time, the castle had been abandoned foostltvo centuries: the roof, already partly caved
in, had been completely demolished in order to chtbe payment of rates with the result that the
upper floors, exposed to the elements — were in/dme weeds and rubble. The owners that
followed in the course of the T%entury did nothing about the dilapidated statehef building
which seemed destined to be demolished.

As in the case of the castle at Issogne and F¥eiges castle was saved thanks to a group of
Piedmontese intellectuals who shared a passiothéoMiddle Ages, and in particular thanks to the
architect Alfredo d’Andrate, who had the more uttjemeeded repair work carried out so as to
avoid ulterior and irreversible damage.

In 1894 he finally succeeded in purchasing theleast behalf of the State and then proceeded with
its restoration which was concluded in 1920.

TOUR OF THE CASTLE

Having passed through the gatehouse in the fattifvalls, or
on horseback over the adjacent drawbridge, oneueners the §
guardhouse, situated in front of the entrance t® ¢hstle
proper.

The front door of the castle leads into a passagé (i),
formerly defended by a machicolation concealedhia Yault
and a second doorway, one-time protected by aydbstdeads
into the central square courtya@) (

A monumental stone staircase, mounted on rampaiesy
leads to the upper floors. The geometric symmetryit® B v
architecture and the simplicity of its decorativetadls in dressed green and white stone are in
keeping with the military character of the edifieed also denote the excellent quality of its
masonry.

On theground floor, two large symmetrical halls extend from frontbimck on the east and west
sides of the castle and there is a kitchen in betvan the south sid&)( The hall on the east side
(4) probably used originally to store artillery, hasbarrel vault, whereas the more attractive
Armoury Hall to the westH) with a pointed vault has two monumental firepkeeth ornamental
posts; the duplication of the wall structure anteotindications that emerged in the course of rrecen
restoration work bear witness to the over-lappihgasious building campaigns.

The rooms on thérst floor , reserved for the lords of the manor, are
lit by elegant two-mullioned stone windows in™dentury style
which are larger than those on the other floore st dining-room
(6) is connected to the main kitchen by way of aiserhatch 7).

e The multi-span stone vault in this kitchen, rebiritthe time of
Il : Renato of Challant, is the only original ceilindtle the castle. Of

T} the three large fireplaces, the enormous one onntrth side is
richly decorated with mouldings and pillaring. Fraime service
quarters on the second floor (closed to the publac)wooden

stairway leads up to the floor on the level of biagtlements.




SARRE CASTLE

The origins and the 18' century reconstruction

Set on a promontory overlooking the Dora BalteaniSarre
Castle dominates the road leading to the upper @aAosta
Valley. The original part of the castle was prolyalilt in the
12" century, whereas the first written records docuingnits

= existence date from the early™8entury. The property passed
| then through different owners and in 1708 the eastis bought
by Jean Francois Ferrod who commissioned the cdenple
reconstruction, leaving only the tower intact. Thistorian J.B.
De Tillier, who had had the opportunity to obsethe edifice
before its reconstruction, reported that the boddworks were
quite substantial.

The royal castle
It was his passion for ibex-hunting that convintétlorio Emanuele Il of Savoy
(1820-1878) to buy the castle in 1869 to use asmafartable alpine retreat in
Aosta Valley. The Royal castle of Sarre, thus idel in His Majesty’s Private
Estate, became the headquarters for his huntingdéxgms in Cogne, Rhémes
and Valsavarenche valleys.
In order to accommodate the first king of Italy wally, a campaign of works was
carried which included the raising of the towereleand the building of new
stables. The interiors were completely restoredraadernised.
The Curator of the Royal Palace in Milan was callpdn specially to look after
the fitting-out of the rooms, for which he provideg transferring furnishings
from other royal residences.

R rS VI wmmmme  V/ittorio Emanuele’s successor, Umberto | (1844-198180 chose to
use this alpine castle for hunting purposes.
In the last years of his reign, Umberto | dedicgtadicular attention
to Sarre castle, where he promoted further inter@movations.
Noteworthy among the works carried out on that sicea are the
decorative series in the great halls featuring ilmd chamois
trophies.

The 20" century

Works of maintenance on the residence during tisetivo decades of
the 2¢" century are reported in the records, althoughnguthat
period the new sovereigns, Vittorio Emanuele 118§2-1947) and Elena of Montenegro (1873-
1952) showed little interest in the property.

From the mid-1930s, there was renewed vibranchenatmosphere at the castle when Maria José
(1906-2001), wife of the Crown Prince, chose ihas summer-holiday residence. The Princess, an
enthusiastic climber, had a special fondness ribsta Valley.

In 1946, following the institutional referendum tilsanctioned the victory of the Republic, Umberto
Il took his leave of Italy with the title of Counf Sarre. After the Second World War, Sarre castle
remained the property of the Savoy family until when 1972, it was acquired by the “Societa
Moriana”. Fitted-out with miscellaneous furnishifrgm other residences belonging to the Savoy
family, the castle was opened to the public as seun of dynastic memories.

In 1989, the Regional Government of the Aosta Watlerchased the castle.

A detailed consultation of the archives in Turimgnie and Milan made it possible to recover the
appearance and functional role of the castle irpdreod following its purchase by the Royal House




and to identify its transformations. The discovefytwo inventories of furniture, dated 1875 and

1890, facilitated the arrangement of the originahishings (those still preserved) in each room.

In default of any precise records regarding thekaaf art, these were arranged in the various
rooms in historical-cultural and thematic order. il8thtouring the castle, visitors can admire

furniture, paintings, sculptures, prints, preciagects, curiosities and magnificently decorated
interiors that bear witness to fragments of thegig lives of its illustrious owners.

Ground floor:

1- entrance hall 7 - hunting hall: management Accordlng to the castle

2- ticket office 8 - hunting hall: techniques records, the grou nd floor

3- wardrobe 9 - the galatieri hall ; fiAi

4- reading room 10 - castles hall contained the dlnlng
5- reception gallery 11 - cabinets des gravures room, the apartment of
£ 6- hunting hall: territory 12 - cabinets des gravures the Prince of Naples and
the  castle-custodian’s

quarters, whereas the kitchens, larder and cellane in the basement.
Portraits and sculptures representing members eoHibuse of Savoy from
Emanuele Filiberto Duke of Savoy to King Vittoriom&nuele Il are
displayed in the Reception Gallery.

The halls given over to the theme of hunting illatt the relative methods
and techniques used betweet' and 19 centuries, with particular reference
to the royal hunting expeditions in the Alps.
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First floor: Ea p T .
The halls in the Appartamento Realefe- [ royal hall i oy e
evoke the size of the living spaces in the-king's antechamber and bedroom g3
. . 3- 's bed '|_____..1 ]
castle during the time of Umberto I, as, 252 PCOM  doi P &
documented by the 1890 inventory. Sayes- gallery s ;
i i i 6- trophy hall P e
for some exceptions, the interiors e, oY B s quarters s i 11
arranged with the original furniture (that s- bedroom
stil  preserved); the fabrics are
reproductions based on original samples preservatieaState Archives inj
Turin. < s
The decorative work in the Gallery and in the Trpptall, carried out after H eoioinds &
the death of the sovereign, attest Umberto I's rdesd increase the;

monumental value of the residence. 13
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Second floor:
SR A i y 1- vittorio Emanuele Il and Elena | Used as bedrooms, these halls were given to
of Montenegro guests of consequence, whereas the servants’

i :
Bl 2-Umberto and Maria José o . .
})4 11 (-4— FLJ Belgium room was adjacent to the stairway. The layout

E Sumberto and Maria Jose's is now arranged in a chronological order
e 4-fourth hall related to the various members of the House of
=0 5-hall of mementoes Savoy who resided in the castle during th& 20

"~ T Iml century.

(=8B | The chapel

L |' - In the chapel, the liturgical accessories and tieegieus upholstered in velvet
| e | W_ are those documented in the 1890 inventory asharpriests’ vestments.

~ || Itwas probably at that time that the original gitace was substituted with the
J present one, which features some saints aroundithien Mary.




SAVOY CASTLE

It was thanks to Margherita of Savoy, spouse of Entabl and
Queen of ltaly that Gressoney became one impohahdtay
resort. From 1889 to 1925, Margherita of Savoy,uspoof
Umberto | and Queen of Italy the Queen returneGressoney
during the summer. For her, walking and mountaiouesions
were an enjoyable diversion from the rigid protoaitourt.
During her holidays in Gressoney, the Queen likedvéar the
local costume which, following her example, develdpn style
to that still worn to this day.

Queen Margherita’s castle stands at the foot ofleCdklla
Ranzola, in the locality called « Belvedere » whicdmmands a
view of the whole valley as far as the Lyskamm iglacin
August 1899 the castle’s foundation stone was layEue
architect Emilio Stramucci planned a castle in aiesal style.
Enclosed in the rich greenery of the park thataunds it, the
aspect of the building is that of a turreted mamause, with the
added elegance of numerous windows and a semilireeranda, overlooking the valley.

The young artist Carlo Cussetti did the pictoralaonentation of the castle. The Medieval-style dedel
ceilings, wall-panelling and furnishing are the wof the carver Michele Dellera.

A little décauvilleconnected the castle to the kitchens, situatedniearby building.

Since 1981, the castle belongs to the AutonomouggoRef Aosta Valley. In the lower area of the paak
rock garden has been created with a vast collecfitaotanical plants that represent the flora ef Atips.

THE APARTMENTS

The castle is three-storied: the day rooms arénergtound floor, the royal apartments on the ficir and
the second floor was reserved for the gentlemetouoft (closed to the public); whereas the baseram#
contains the castle cellars.

Ground floor. The main entrance of the castle leads into
a vast, pillared halll), in which the panels of its wooden
ceiling are handsomely painted. On one side are the
games-roomsZ) and sitting-rooms, from which one can
approach the semi-circular veranda that overlodies t
valley. The dining-room3), on the other side of the hall,
has ornate pictorial decorations on the wallspfaee and
ceiling-panels and the wood-panelling is carved stroll
pattern. The so-called « groom’s entrancéy glso in
neo-Gothic style, is in the octagonal tower on rloeth-
west corner of the castle.

First floor. An elegant, great staircase in wood, with
carvings of griffon-vultures and eagles leads ugh&
royal apartments. These are preceded by a hallBay (
the ceiling of which bears the well-wishing instiop
« Hic manebimus optime » (We well enjoy stayingeer
The Queen’s apartmerfi)(is ideally situated and from
the windows there’s a spectacular view of Montee€Ros
and the entire valley. The adjoining apartment was
appointed to the Crown Prince UmbeRo(he King's
apartmentg) and that of the marchioness Pes of
Villamarina @), lady-in-waiting to the Queen, are
situated on the opposite side of the hallway.




USSEL CASTLE

Standing on a marked, rocky promontory, Ussel eastl
overlooks the south side of the residential are@hdttillon.

Built by Ebalo Il of Challant in the mid 14th cenyuthe castle
marks a change in fortress architecture of Aostiieya
Indeed, it is the first single body castle in Véasta, which
. was the last evolutionary phase of medieval casiled
marked the passage between the contemporary castémis
and the rigid forms in Verres. Having passed on enaums
occasions from the Challants to the Savoys andwecsa, the
@ castle then became a prison, until it was abandoned

S e completely. Having bought the castle from the Passe
d'Entréves family, heirs to the Challants, in 1828on Marcel Bich donated it to the regional
authority, which restored it and earmarked it agxribition centre.

With a large, rectangular layout, the castle i€@mmple of good masonry that culminates in blind
arcades, not present on the north side, and bebnnifilioned windows each different from the
next, with floral and geometric decorations.

The corners on the south side (facing the mountarg two round towers, which were originally
connected via a walkway, protected by battlements.

Thesouth sidealso has an entrance with an overhead machicolatio

Thenorth side, which faces Chatillon, has two four-sided towevih a slightly projecting
watchtower in between, a symbolic element of fepadaver. The monumental fireplaces remain,
with large shelves placed on the same ascendiagdiploiting a single flue, and traces of the
stairs and floor divisions.

Before restoration work began, the manor was mastiyins; however a precise archaeological
assessment enabled identification and reintegrafidime missing parts. A picturesqgwalkway
was added along the battlement, where visitorsadamre the Chatillon plain and its historic
buildings.



SARRIOD DE LA TOUR CASTLE

According to the 18th-century historian De Tillier,
the Sarriod de la Tour family descended from the
lords of Bard, distinguished noble family of the
Aosta Valley; in reality the existence of the
Sarriod noble family is attested since the"12
century - they were indeed linked politically with
the lords of Bard.

The castle, the origins of which remain however
obscure, is situated on a flat portion of land in
Saint-Pierre, close to the national road. The
original nucleus included the chapel and the
central square-plan tower surrounded by enclosure
walls (donjon). This configuration was the same as
that of other castles established in Aosta Valley
between the 0and the 1% century. In 1420 Jean Sarriod decided to haveopepr stately castle
built on the site of the pre-existing tower knowimce the 14th century as the “turris Sariodorum”.
This was achieved by building a series of edifieego the donjon. It was during that campaign of
works that the spiral staircase (viret) was buid dome cross-windows in freestone, characteristic
of the Aosta Valley in the 15century, were fitted in the keep. In 1478 Jeants, #\ntoine Sarriod

de la Tour, refurnished the chapel which was deeic@o the Virgin Mary and to St. John the
Evangelist; on the same occasion the panels ouiselentrance depicting the Crucifixion and St.
Christopher were frescoed and the small belfryedhisA large service room on the ground floor of
the north wing has a wooden ceiling; the so-cafleall of the heads”, taking its name from the
ceiling decoration, is on the first floor. In thaté 18" century the outer enclosure walls were
fortified with circular and semicircular towers aadhew entrance to the castle was created on the
east side; the ogee portal has an archivolt inpsedistone featuring the Sarriod coat-of-arms. The
discontinuity between floor levels attest the coempbverlap of building phases carried out in the
following centuries. The wing that now forms thesteprospect of the castle was built during the
16" century, the north corner tower was elevated & 1" century and some fragments of wall
paintings and a stuccoed fireplace date back toetitey-18" century. The castle remained the
property of the Sarriod de la Tour family up to #8923 after which it passed into the hands of the
Bensa family of Genova. Since 1970 it has belorigdte regional administration.

THE CHAPEL

The original frescoes are now only fragmentary;iioge conspicuous
parts remaining are those on the south wall: thpeu part of a
Crucifixion on the vault, two saints, mermaids ardtesques in the
lower part, an Adoration between the windows. Thac@ixion and

Saint Christopher outside the entrance are the wbrkn unknown

painter and reflect the Franko-Flemish style of $keond half of the
15" Century. The wooden altar, painted to imitate rearwith a

canvas depicting Mary Magdalene, dates from thedleidf the 18th
century.

“THE HALL OF THE HEADS”

The main stateroom of the castle owes its namédomMooden ceiling which is supported by 171
sculpted corbels featuring grotesques, imaginarpstess and animals bearing coat-of-arms now
abraded. The fireplace was put in by the last osoéthe castle.



BARD FORTRESS

Already during Theodoric's
reign (VI century A.D), Bard
was a garrison of sixty
soldiers, defending the
"Clausuree Augustanse" (a
defence system on the
borders of the Empire).

In 1034, it was described as
"inexpugnabile oppidum®”, in

one of the oldest references
to a castle in Val d'Aosta.

The Savoys became the
Lords of Bard in 1242, with

Amadeus |V, driven by the

insistence of the local

inhabitants, who were tired

of the abuse of power by
Hugh of Bard, who exploited the position of his t@ago levy heavy duties on travellers and
merchants.

From that time on, the castle was controlled bySheoys who held a garrison there. In 1661, even
the armies from other fortresses of Aosta Valleygluding Verrés and Montjovet, converged in
Bard.

The castle was once again the protagonist withpidmsage of th&rench army in 1704 and
particularly onNapoleonBonaparte's arrival iMiay 1800, who formed a garrison of 400 Austrian
men within the fortress. The defence structuretheffort were so efficient that Napoleon's army
took about two weeks to overcome the Austrian defenwith success due only to cunning tactics.
The fortress was then dismantled by Napoleon, tadafurther danger.

The currentreconstruction work was commissioned by Carlo Felice, in the raddf the
Restoration, who, fromi830onwards, turned it into one of the most importaiiitary structures in

Val d'Aosta. The fortress began to deterioratéhateand of the nineteenth century. It was used as
criminal baths and then as a weapons depot.

It was decommissioned in 1975 from military stateperty and was purchased by the Val d'Aosta
regional authority in 1990.

The fortress hosts thdps Museumand temporary exhibitions.



